
STONEYBROOK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

March 22, 2011 



Stoneybrook Community Development District 
6131 Lyons Road, Suite 100●Coconut Creek, Florida 33073 

Phone: (954) 426-2105●Fax: (954) 426-2147●Toll-free: (877) 276-0889 

 

 

 

 

March 16, 2011  

 

 

 

Board of Supervisors 

Stoneybrook Community Development District 

 

Dear Board Members: 

 

A Regular Meeting of the Stoneybrook Community Development District’s Board of 

Supervisors will be held on Tuesday, March 22, 2011 at 6:00 p.m., at the Stoneybrook 

Community Center, 11800 Stoneybrook Golf Boulevard, Estero, Florida 33928.  The agenda 

is as follows:  

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Consideration and Appointment of a Head Golf Pro Resume Screening Committee 

 Appointment of Committee 

 Discussion: Mission 

 Discussion: Review and Ranking Process 

 Discussion: Timeline 

 

3. Discussion: Delegated Authority for Golf Operations and Board Reserved Authority 

 

4. Update:  Discussions Regarding Potential New Pro Shop/Clubhouse Location 

 

5. Discussion: Proceeding Forward with a Portion of the Residential Lake Bank Erosion 

Restoration Project 

 

6. Discussion/Consideration: Email from Chris Vanderhoef Regarding Bartered Certified 

Arborist Services 

  

7. Consideration of February 22, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

8. Other Business 

 

9. Staff Reports 

a. Attorney 

b. Engineer 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Stoneybrook Community Development District 

March 22, 2011, Regular Meeting Agenda 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

c. Golf Superintendent 

d. Golf Pro 

e. Manager 

 i. Unaudited Financial Statements as of February 28, 2011 

 ii. High Irrigation Users’ Report, Period 2/2011 

 iii. Irrigation Disconnect List, 3/9/2011 

 iv. NEXT MEETING DATE: April 26, 2011 at 6:00 P.M. 

 

10. Audience Comments/Supervisors’ Requests 

 

11. Executive Session 

 

12. Adjournment 

 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at (239) 464-7114. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Chesley E. Adams, Jr. 

District Manager 

 

CA:dg 

FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF TO ATTEND BY TELEPHONE: 

CALL IN NUMBER: 1-888-354-0094 

CONFERENCE ID: 8593810 



















0

Rank 1-5

(5 high)

1) Golf Pro Experience- minimum 5 years (prefer Public Course) 0

2) Four year degree. 0

3) Experience in Florida market. 0

4) Experience in preparing and adhereing to monthly/annual budgets. 0

5) Strong sales and marketing background/experience. 0

6) Strong managerial and customer service back ground. 0

7) Ability to work with a team. (Board and other staff) 0

8) Strong back ground in developing/organizing tournaments. 0

9) Strong back ground/interest in developing golf clinics and giving lessons. 0

10) Outgoing 0

TOTAL 0

Notes: PLEASE REMEMBER TO FILL IN NAME OF CANDIDATE AND YOUR NAME AS RANKER

ENTER YOUR RANKINGS IN THE PINK BOXES ONLY, THE TOTALS WILL CALCULATE AUTOMATICALLY

candidate name

Stoneybrook CDD
Head Golf Professional

Candidate Ranking Form

Name of Ranker

Review Item





MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

STONEYBROOK 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 4 

 A Regular Meeting of the Stoneybrook Community Development District’s Board of 5 

Supervisors was held on Tuesday, February 22, 2011, at 6:00 p.m., at the Stoneybrook 6 

Community Center, 11800 Stoneybrook Golf Boulevard, Estero, Florida 33928. 7 

 8 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

 10 
Ron Ritschel Chair 11 

Chris Brady Vice Chair 12 

James Boesch Assistant Secretary 13 

Ray Rodrigues Assistant Secretary 14 

Ed Harland Assistant Secretary 15 

 16 

Also present were: 17 

 18 
Chuck Adams District Manager 19 

Dan Cox District Counsel 20 

Matt Nieder Golf Course Superintendent 21 

Josh Ross Assistant Pro 22 

Tricia Blake Merchandise Manager 23 

Andy Whirl Resident 24 

Merrily Baker Resident 25 

Gerry ________ Resident 26 

Peter Austin Resident 27 

Santo Listro Resident 28 

John Blakeley Master Board Association 29 

 30 

 31 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call 32 
 33 

 Mr. Adams called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m., and noted, for the record, that 34 

Supervisors Ritschel, Boesch, Rodrigues and Harland were present, in person.  Supervisor Brady 35 

was not present at roll call. 36 

 37 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion:  Head Golf Pro Position 38 

 39 

***This item was an addition to the agenda.*** 40 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 2 

 Mr. Ritschel introduced Mr. Josh Ross as the Assistant Pro and Ms. Tricia Blake as the 41 

Merchandise Manager.  He recalled that Mr. Boesch sent an email requesting information.  The 42 

email said that Mr. Bill Reynolds and Mr. Bob Schroeder showed up at the Pro Shop.  Mr. 43 

Ritschel stated that it may have been a way to notify that Mr. Schroeder’s son-in-law, Mark, may 44 

contact him about a tournament of 80
+ 

people, as he was having problems getting it scheduled on 45 

a Sunday.  Secondly, there was a comment about a similar situation with people from Bella 46 

Terra.  Thirdly, Mr. Boesch made a comment about Mr. Harwood taking vacation in the height 47 

of the season.  Mr. Ritschel stated that, on the following Thursday, he went to visit with Mr. 48 

Harwood to get Mr. Harwood’s side of the story, in which he clearly remembered Mr. Reynolds 49 

and Mr. Schroeder coming to visit but did not recall a conversation about the tournament.  Mr. 50 

Ritschel then called Mr. Reynolds, who recalled that he visited the Pro Shop to schedule the 51 

annual event for post office workers and Mr. Reynolds was convinced that what Mr. Harwood 52 

quoted was the daily fee rate, as though an individual walked in.  Mr. Ritschel recalled that he 53 

asked Mr. Reynolds if he was at the breakfast across the street regarding the Bella Terra time.  54 

Mr. Reynolds stated the comment was made by Dick _________ that there was something going 55 

on at Bella Terra.  Mr. Ritschel stated he called Mr. Schroeder who said he would have Mark, his 56 

son-in-law, call Mr. Ritschel over the weekend.  Mr. Ritschel then called Dick ______ who 57 

summarized the story of the morning meeting at breakfast that was different than Mr. Boesch’s 58 

email.  Dick _________ explained he was at the Hyatt with his wife and they had a conversation 59 

with an individual from Bella Terra whom he recommended to Mr. Harwood.  Mr. Ritschel 60 

stated Mark never called him and Mr. Schroeder told him that he guessed that Mark did not want 61 

to talk to Mr. Ritschel.  Mr. Ritschel noted that the fallout from Thursday morning was that Mr. 62 

Harwood left extremely upset and voiced his beliefs about the operation of the golf course.  Mr. 63 

Ritschel stated he responded to questions from individuals by stating he was working out some 64 

personal issues.   65 

***Supervisor Brady joined the meeting.*** 66 

Mr. Ritschel stated Mr. Harwood presented a document and discussed the possibility of 67 

an employment contract.  Mr. Ritschel read the provided contract and stated Mr. Harwood is 68 

willing to reconsider the events that occurred.   69 

Mr. Adams commented that for the first eight (8) to nine (9) years, a golf course 70 

management company managed the operations of the golf course; however, due to the decreased 71 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 3 

revenue, the Board chose to reduce their expenses and utilize their Golf pro and Superintendent 72 

for the golf course management, with the District Manager’s office handling the accounting.  Mr. 73 

Adams noted the golf course needed the greens replaced, lost revenue when the golf course was 74 

closed and no one knew if the golf course was going to be able to open and function.  He stated 75 

that a lot of the attention was directed at Mr. Harwood, as he is the front salesman.  Mr. Adams 76 

recommended addressing the way in which on-site staff is handled and authorizing a Board 77 

Member to be solely responsible for the day-to-day direction of the two (2) supervisors, without 78 

interference of other Board Members or members of the public.  Mr. Adams recommended that 79 

all policy and procedural questions, relating to revenue, should be directed towards the Board 80 

and did not recommend delegating authority to any single Board Member or staff person.  A 81 

specific example would be the decision to have Sunday tournaments, which should be considered 82 

before the Board, as it is a significant influence on revenue.  He noted that authority may be 83 

delegated down the road, when the golf course is more solvent.  Mr. Adams noted the District 84 

has to hold public meetings and address public scrutiny of staff in a different way, in order to 85 

avoid being back at this point.   86 

Mr. Harland stated he agreed with Mr. Adams; however, he believed the District was 87 

currently operating in said fashion, with Mr. Ritschel acting as supervisor.  Mr. Ritschel stated he 88 

has a problem with individuals sending emails, working up the rumor mill and not having facts, 89 

as this is the second time such occurred.  Mr. Boesch commented that Mr. Reynolds and Mr. 90 

Schroeder said Mr. Harwood quoted the going rate.  He stated the story that he received was that 91 

Mr. Harwood blew them out the door.  Mr. Boesch commented that he spoke to Alex at Bella 92 

Terra and she stated no one talked to her about working with Stoneybrook Golf Course.  Mr. 93 

Boesch stated whoever works with Mr. Harwood should be objective.  Mr. Ritschel noted that, if 94 

he is the contact person for the golf pro, emails regarding the golf pro should be directed to Mr. 95 

Adams.  Mr. Ritschel noted there were no problems when Mr. Harwood was on vacation.  He 96 

explained every Sunday the Staff reviews the schedule for the week and noted the concern of too 97 

much micromanagement by Board Members.   98 

Mr. Brady noted the system is not designed for the Board to vote on whether to have a 99 

tournament or not, that is why there is a golf pro.  The Board should not be voting on what 100 

fertilizer to use, that is why there is a golf superintendent.  He noted the Board voted to get rid of 101 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 4 

a golf management firm and knew that the change was going to be a test.  He recommended 102 

reconsidering the need for a golf management company.   103 

Mr. Harland stated he agreed that staff should have one (1) supervisor for the successor 104 

and that the Board does not need to make decisions on whether to have a golf tournament.  Mr. 105 

Boesch commented that, under normal circumstances, an employer gives a contract to an 106 

employee.  Mr. Ritschel commented that employee contracts were not used for any prior 107 

employees.  Mr. Boesch stated the Board should be considering concepts about how a supervisor 108 

is going to work with a person.  Mr. Ritschel stated he requested that Mr. Harwood document his 109 

concerns.   110 

Mr. Cox stated there needs to be protocol for dealing with the Golf pro position and the 111 

Board has to trust that person to run the business.  He noted a monthly shift in direction makes 112 

the conflict hard to manage.   113 

Mr. Ritschel commented that relative to the tournament, in the past, the post office group 114 

went to Westminister in May and was charged $35, including some food.  The Stoneybrook 115 

published group rates would be a high of $42.50 for a group of 16-32 people and $38.50 for a 116 

group of 65-144 people.  He stated that he is not aware what took place, as Mr. Harwood did not 117 

recall the conversation and Mark did not return Mr. Ritschel’s phone call.   118 

In response to a question, Mr. Ritschel explained that Mr. Harwood is not on the payroll 119 

and the Board will make a decision tonight if Mr. Harwood will return.   120 

 Mr. Nieder commented that a document was received, after the transfer, with the salary 121 

content and vacation time.  He recalled that he presented the Board with a job description for the 122 

position, at that time, which included the need for one (1) Board Member to whom the position 123 

answers.  Mr. Nieder stated the employees of the golf course have gone above and beyond to do 124 

what needs to be done to keep the facility operating, doing more than what the job description 125 

outlines.  He noted sometimes the staff does not feel appreciated.   126 

 In response to a question, Mr. Ritschel stated the previous golf management company fee 127 

was $150,000, including the accounting.    128 

 An audience member commented that real estate agents are advising people not to buy in 129 

Stoneybrook because it is broke.  The audience member noted the understanding that the debt 130 

sits on the golf course, not the community, needs to be conveyed. 131 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 5 

 Mr. Ritschel commented that, over the last few months, contact with media was made.  132 

He recalled communication with the News Press and interviews with the local NBC and Fox 133 

news stations.  Discussion followed on the need to repair Stoneybrook’s image in the 134 

community, through positive public relations and the use of volunteers.   135 

 Discussion followed on the issues with the golf course, bondholders and the position of 136 

the golf pro.  Mr. Andy Whirl, a resident, noted the golf course is behind on revenue.   137 

 Mr. Boesch reported that he was working with Ms. Trudy Williams who stated she will 138 

try to schedule a meeting in Tallahassee, when the session starts on March 8
th

.  Discussion 139 

followed on the ability to get a bankruptcy approved.   140 

Mr. Ritschel noted that, whether the approval from the governor is granted, the District 141 

has to bring the bondholders to the table, as the bond is in default.  He noted the play for January 142 

was high, with 5,804 total rounds played, of which, 689 rounds were membership players.  The 143 

average rounds played in February, through February 21
st
, were 236 rounds per day.  He noted 144 

when the District opened the golf course, the golf course did not have access to money and the 145 

golf course sold $150,000 worth of memberships, repaid the general fund $136,000 in January, 146 

and there is cash in the SunTrust account.  Mr. Ritschel stated the use of volunteers has provided 147 

cost savings and avoided hiring seasonal people that would be laid off in May.   148 

An audience member questioned the status of the bondholders.  Mr. Ritschel stated the 149 

bondholders requested a copy of the financial statements in December, a copy was provided and 150 

no further communication has occurred.  Mr. Cox concurred.  Ms. Merrily Baker, a resident, 151 

questioned if bond counsel has been considered.  Mr. Ritschel stated the Board has contacts but 152 

is awaiting the outcome of the possible bankruptcy.  Discussion followed on potential issues with 153 

the bondholders and the pending meeting in Tallahassee to discuss the possible bankruptcy 154 

filing. 155 

Mr. Brady asked for the estimated value of the bonds.  Mr. Cox stated they are estimated 156 

at $0.40 on the dollar.  Mr. Ritschel recalled that Mr. Dennis Derby, from WellsFargo, wrote the 157 

bonds down to $0.60 on the dollar and the debtor-in-possession (DIP) lender understood the 158 

bonds to be written down to $0.40 on the dollar.  An audience member questioned if an appraisal 159 

was completed on the golf course.  Mr. Ritschel replied that he is not aware of an appraisal.   160 

Mr. Adams recommended that the Board make a decision as to whether or not Mr. 161 

Harwood will return and/or the acceptance of the proposed employment contract.  Mr. Ritschel 162 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 6 

recalled that, two (2) months ago, the Board decided to complete a performance appraisal.  Mr. 163 

Boesch commented that the review was to be completed by Mr. Ritschel and Mr. Adams.  Mr. 164 

Adams recalled being a facilitator in which Board Members would send him the comments on 165 

Mr. Ritschel’s review, in order to prevent a violation of the Sunshine Law.  He stated he 166 

additionally reviewed Mr. Ritschel’s review of Mr. Harwood and provided his own comments.  167 

Mr. Ritschel stated he received comments from Board Members, except Mr. Brady, and his 168 

intent was to review the document with Mr. Harwood, prior to this meeting.  Mr. Ritschel stated 169 

he discussed parts of the review with Mr. Harwood, as far as what he needs to improve upon; 170 

however, he has not reviewed the entire document with Mr. Harwood.  Mr. Adams noted that 171 

Mr. Harwood has not returned to work, as Mr. Ritschel and Mr. Adams believed that the 172 

possibility of him returning needed to be considered by the Board. 173 

Mr. Ritschel made a motion to reemploy Mr. Harwood, as the head golf professional, on 174 

the same basis that he previously served, and that the performance appraisal, which was built off 175 

the job description, will be reviewed.  Mr. Rodrigues seconded the motion for discussion.  Mr. 176 

Rodrigues felt when an employee walks off the job, it is not right to bring them back and the 177 

circumstances do not warrant looking past the situation.  Mr. Brady questioned if Mr. Harwood 178 

contacted Mr. Ritschel about returning.  Mr. Ritschel replied that he contacted Mr. Harwood; the 179 

situation took place on a Thursday and he contacted Mr. Harwood on Tuesday, a week ago 180 

today, and had lunch on Thursday.  A resident noted that Mr. Harwood has been very 181 

professional and voiced his support for Mr. Harwood.  A resident questioned the Board’s plan if 182 

Mr. Harwood does not return.  Mr. Ritschel replied that there is a PGA system in which an 183 

opening can be listed and that he did have a couple of resumes.   184 

Mr. Harland presented a handout on his thoughts about Mr. Harwood’s incident.  He 185 

noted he was surprised that Mr. Harwood quit with no notice and found his actions to be 186 

unforgivable.  Mr. Harland did not recommend allowing Mr. Harwood to return.   187 

Mr. Boesch recalled the fall sessions in which the residents expressed their concern about 188 

having to pay a special assessment for the golf course and listed the work that needed to be 189 

completed.  He did not support having Mr. Harwood return.   190 

 191 

 192 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 7 

On MOTION by Mr. Ritschel and seconded by Mr. Rodrigues, 193 

with Mr. Ritschel in favor and Mr. Harland, Mr. Rodrigues, 194 

Mr. Brady and Mr. Boesch not in favor, the reemployment of 195 

Mr. Bruce Harwood, as the head golf professional, was not 196 

approved.  (Motion failed 1-4) 197 

 198 

 199 

Mr. Ritschel stated the PGA has a posting site for available positions.  He noted that Mr. 200 

Josh Ross and Ms. Tricia Blake stepped up for the past ten (10) days.  Discussion followed on 201 

the next step to take in the hiring of a PGA head golf professional.  Mr. Adams recommended 202 

bringing in administrative support for the remainder of the busy season, while considering 203 

applicants for the permanent position.  Discussion followed on the actual posting and 204 

employment process.  Mr. Adams recommended the Board review a shortlist of candidates and 205 

the appointed Board Member, that will manage the position, should be delegated the authority to 206 

complete the interview process of the final three (3) candidates.  An audience member 207 

questioned if there is a golf management company that is able to perform this function.  Mr. 208 

Ritschel responded there are firms that manage the functions of a golf course.  Mr. Brady 209 

commented that there are several ex-pros in the community and offered to obtain information 210 

from them as to appropriate guidelines.  Mr. Nieder recommended considering the general 211 

managers, as they are responsible for the hiring of the golf professional.  Mr. Brady noted the 212 

available resources should be considered through the initiation of an email or phone 213 

conversation.  Mr. Adams questioned who the Board wished to delegate the authority to draft the 214 

posting.  Mr. Nieder questioned how many years of experience the Board preferred.  Mr. Boesch 215 

stated that the Board should have time to consider the criteria.  Mr. Adams suggested that Board 216 

Members can forward their thoughts to him by the end of the day, Thursday.  Mr. Nieder 217 

provided the appropriate website for the posting.  Mr. Adams stated the posting can run for two 218 

(2) weeks, with the idea that received resumes will be available to the Board Members for 219 

review, prior to the next Board meeting.  He asked the Board if they desired to delegate authority 220 

to shortlist the resumes or if they preferred to review all the received resumes.   221 

 Discussion followed on how to handle the incoming resumes.  Mr. Brady recommended 222 

taking the total received resumes and splitting them between Mr. Ritschel and Mr. Rodrigues for 223 

them to filter.  Then, the Board can go through the final resumes, as provided by Mr. Ritschel 224 

and Mr. Rodrigues.  Mr. Ritschel commented that there may be a firm available to weed through 225 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 8 

the applications.  Mr. Adams explained he is attempting to get concurrence on the process.  Ms. 226 

Baker suggested the Board use the expertise of the residents and create a group to review the 227 

resumes.  Mr. Cox noted that the function is subject to the Sunshine Law, with noticed public 228 

meetings, minutes and records.  Mr. Adams stated he is trying to ensure the process is thorough, 229 

effective and quick, so that the person can be appointed as soon as possible.   230 

 Mr. Rodrigues commented there is plenty of expertise in the community and that the 231 

Board should reconsider their business model.  He recommended hiring an individual for the 232 

administrative functions that Mr. Harwood used to complete, such as accounts payable and 233 

receivables, as a golf pro is not responsible for such functions.  Mr. Ritschel recalled that Mr. 234 

Harwood made the comment that he is a high paid clerk.  Discussion followed on the process of 235 

hiring.  Mr. Rodrigues noted his experience in hiring individuals in the Sunshine and stated he 236 

would like to see the individual before voting to hire them.  Mr. Cox recalled the county 237 

commissioners held a workshop to hire the county attorney in which the applicant gave a 238 

presentation.  He suggested holding a workshop, prior to a regular Board meeting, in which the 239 

Board Members would meet the applicants, not interview, but hear their presentations as to why 240 

they are the person that should be hired.  Discussion followed on the process of filtering 241 

applicants.  Mr. Harland suggested posting the job and, in the meantime, the Board can assemble 242 

a committee of qualified individuals to scan and shortlist the resumes to present to the Board in 243 

the Sunshine.  Mr. Adams questioned if the Board was ready to select the committee tonight.  He 244 

stated the job can be posted and, within two (2) weeks, the committee can be appointed and two 245 

(2) weeks later, at the regular meeting, the Board can review the presented resumes.  Mr. Cox 246 

suggested including the specific needs of the golf course, such as an individual with experience 247 

in rebuilding business at a golf course that was closed for awhile.  Mr. Whirl noted the need to 248 

hire an office manager and that the Board already has information regarding appropriate salaries.  249 

Mr. Ritschel noted the Board is going to find out if a golf pro can be hired for $35,000-$40,000.  250 

Ms. Baker recommended not rushing the hiring process.   251 

 Mr. Adams asked how the Board desires to proceed.  Discussion followed on the details 252 

of the job posting.  Mr. Adams requested the Board Members to email him their thoughts on the 253 

job description and he will create a description based on all the comments.  A draft will be 254 

emailed and the job posting will be advertised.  All the received resumes will be forwarded to all 255 

Board Members, who will bring their recommendations to the next meeting.  Mr. Ritschel noted 256 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 9 

that phone calls should not be made until after the Board has decided on how to proceed with 257 

references.   258 

 Mr. Gerry _______ noted that the current situation is similar to the situation in 1999 in 259 

which the assistant pro was promoted to golf pro.  He recommended promoting the assistant pro 260 

to golf pro.  Mr. Ritschel replied that Mr. Ross is not qualified.  Mr. Ross stated he is currently 261 

pursuing his Class A.   262 

 Mr. Adams asked how the Board desired the resumes to be screened.  Discussion 263 

followed on forming a committee, using the resources in the community and hiring an 264 

administrative position in the pro shop.  Mr. Rodrigues volunteered to work with Ms. Baker in 265 

forming a group of residents to review the resumes.  He recommended providing the resumes to 266 

the committee members, electronically, for review.  The committee would make their 267 

recommendation to the Board, in a public meeting.  Mr. Cox stated the committee members can 268 

only have communication with each other in a noticed public hearing.  He noted the appointment 269 

of committee members would be made at the March 10
th

 meeting.  Mr. Cox recommended 270 

advertising without a salary and requested the applicants propose their expected salary 271 

compensation.  Discussion followed on the number of final recommendations that the Board 272 

would like to receive from the committee.  Mr. Adams suggested the committee consist of three 273 

(3) to five (5) members and the final recommended applicants be less than ten (10).   274 

 Mr. Adams summarized that he will receive comments from Board Members on the job 275 

description until the end of the day, Thursday, with the posting being made on Monday or 276 

Tuesday of next week.  The meeting at 4:00 p.m., on March 10
th

 will consider interested parties 277 

to serve on the committee.  He noted the committee will have to decide on a meeting date as the 278 

same advertising requirements apply for committee meetings.  Mr. Adams noted that the 279 

committee members do not have to be present to be appointed; however, they have to be 280 

appointed by name.  Mr. Cox noted the final recommendation for final applicants will probably 281 

not be completed by the next meeting.  Discussion followed on the timing of the workshop. 282 

 Mr. Ritschel requested that Mr. Harwood have the opportunity to resign in writing.  He 283 

stated the timesheet for Mr. Harwood should be filled out through February 10, 2011 and that he 284 

will contact Mr. Harwood.  285 

 286 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 10 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Brady, with 287 

all in favor, allowing Mr. Harwood to file a written resignation, 288 

dated February 10, 2011, was approved.  289 

 290 

 291 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion/Consideration: Email from 292 

Chris Vanderhoef Regarding Bartered 293 

Certified Arborist Services 294 

 295 

***This item, originally the Second Order of Business, was discussed out of order.*** 296 

 Mr. Adams stated this item is deferred as Mr. Vanderhoef was not able to attend tonight’s 297 

meeting.  He recalled that Mr. Vanderhoef would like the opportunity to reduce fees and barter 298 

free golf for the completion of the tree trimming of all trees on the golf course.  Mr. Adams 299 

stated he provided Mr. Vanderhoef the total quantity and types of trees on the golf course.  This 300 

item will be considered at the next meeting.   301 

 302 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion:  Sunday Tournaments and 303 

Rates 304 
 305 

 ***This item, originally the Third Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 306 

 This item was discussed during the Second Order of Business.  307 

 308 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion:  Timeliness of Financial 309 

Reports for the Finance Group 310 

 311 

 ***This item, originally the Fourth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 312 

 Mr. Ritschel stated this is the material that Mr. Harwood was furnishing to Peter and/or 313 

Santo.  He stated there are different opinions as to how long the group was going to continue to 314 

run.  He recalled Peter provided a 90-day report at last month’s meeting and he has not received 315 

much information during February, due to Mr. Harwood being on vacation and then leaving.   316 

 Discussion followed on the need for the continuance of the group.  Mr. Harland stated he 317 

did not believe the need was there.  Mr. Ritschel recalled that Mr. Harwood was furnishing 318 

information on a weekly basis, such as daily sales receipts, account payable information, etc.  He 319 

stated the financial statements are a compilation of the information that was received on a 320 

weekly basis and that a second quarter review can be made using the financial statements.  Mr. 321 

Boesch noted the financial statements do not include rounds.  Mr. Ritschel noted those reports 322 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 11 

are available at any time in the pro shop.  Mr. Harland questioned if the $600,000 balance at the 323 

end of the year is an accurate number.  Mr. Ritschel explained that the objective is to make or 324 

beat the budget and that can only be completed with arbitrary reductions.  He noted the 325 

membership funds enabled the golf course to repay the general fund.  Mr. Ritschel offered to 326 

help provide him with any information needed and the pro shop staff will not have to handle any 327 

outside questions. 328 

 329 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion:  Timing of Employee 330 

Vacations 331 
 332 

***This item, originally the Fifth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 333 

 Mr. Ritschel discussed the staff taking vacation and that Mr. Harwood did not arbitrarily 334 

take off.  He noted there were weeks that Mr. Harwood worked six (6) to seven (7) days a week 335 

and stayed until 7:00 p.m., or later.   336 

 Mr. Adams recommended discussion on delegating authority to whoever is going to 337 

continue to oversee and manage the operations of the golf superintendent and golf pro.  He 338 

recommended the authority be delegated, to the Board Member, to determine whether it is 339 

appropriate to allow vacation.  Mr. Rodrigues stated he believed the Board did such already.  Mr. 340 

Adams recommended identifying the key areas of authority delegated to the Board Member.  Mr. 341 

Adams noted the policy and procedural items do not get delegated but are considered and acted 342 

upon only by the Board.  He stated this item will be reconsidered at the Regular Meeting in 343 

March.  Discussion followed on the previously delegated responsibilities of the Board Members.  344 

Mr. Rodrigues stated he has to meet with Mr. Cox regarding the handbook.   345 

 346 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Update:  Discussions with Miromar 347 

Development Regarding Parcel for 348 

Clubhouse Site 349 
 350 

***This item, originally the Sixth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 351 

 Mr. Boesch reported that he sent an email to Mr. Michael Elgin about the parcel; 352 

however, a response has not been received.  Discussion followed on contacting the appropriate 353 

parties.  Mr. Adams offered to pursue this item through his contacts at Miromar Development. 354 

 355 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 12 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion:  Employee Evaluation in an 356 

Open Forum by All Board Members and 357 

Use of One Way Email Communications 358 

for the Same 359 
 360 

***This item, originally the Seventh Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 361 

 Mr. Boesch reported he contacted the state attorney’s office regarding the presentation of 362 

an employee evaluation in an open meeting.  Discussion followed on the email received from the 363 

state attorney’s office.  Mr. Adams stated the CEO refers to the District Manager and does not 364 

apply to the pro shop staff.  He noted Chapter 190 refers to the District Manager as the District’s 365 

CEO.   366 

 367 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2011-3, in 368 

Support of Public Purchase and 369 

Preservation of Edison Farms 370 

 371 

***This item, originally the Eighth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 372 

 Mr. Boesch reported that the plan that Edison Farms is considering has two (2) different 373 

routes.  One route would go aside from Wild Cat Run and straight down to Bonita Beach Road; 374 

the other route will curve in the back of Stoneybrook and end up about 150 feet from I-75 and 375 

straight down to Bonita Beach Road.  He reported he spent a lot of time on the 951 Committee, 376 

in which time was spent designating the roads by adding them to the Metropolitan Planning 377 

Organization’s (MPO) Needs Plan that is renewed every five (5) years.  Up until 2030, it has 378 

been on the plan.  He summarized how other organizations felt about the plans and that the MPO 379 

made a decision to take it off of the 2035 Needs Plan.  Mr. Boesch encouraged the Board to 380 

support the provided resolution.  Mr. Rodrigues noted that if the property is not reserved, it is 381 

more likely than not that, at some point, Country Road 951 will be built and would be 382 

detrimental to the Stoneybrook community.  He stated he hoped that they will be able to get the 383 

land at the appraised value, so that it is a fair deal to the taxpayers.   384 

 385 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Rodrigues, 386 

with all in favor, Resolution 2011-3, in Support of Public 387 

Purchase and Preservation of Edison Farms, was approved.  388 

 389 

 390 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Minutes 391 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 13 

***This item, originally the Ninth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 392 

 December 21, 2010 Emergency Meeting 393 

Mr. Adams presented the December 21, 2010 Emergency Meeting Minutes for the 394 

Board’s approval. 395 

 396 

On MOTION by Mr. Brady and seconded by Mr. Harland, 397 

with all in favor, the December 21, 2010 Emergency Meeting 398 

Minutes, as presented, were approved.  399 

 400 

 401 

 January 25, 2011 Regular Meeting 402 

Mr. Adams presented the January 25, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes for the Board’s 403 

consideration. 404 

The following changes were made: 405 

Line 26 and throughout: change “Charlene” to “Charlotte West”  406 

 Mr. Ritschel questioned if the rover services need to continue.  Mr. Nieder stated the 407 

rover could be eliminated and recalled an incident where he had to address individuals on the 408 

greens at 11:00 p.m., in the evening.  Mr. Blakeley reported he received a phone call from a 409 

golfer about the sound of hammering on the 16
th

 green.  Mr. Ritschel confirmed he heard 410 

hammering when he played golf.  Mr. Ritschel reported that the incident regarding the Women’s 411 

Leagues has not been refunded/credited.  He stated the people that were double charged will be 412 

issued a credit.  413 

 Lines 88, 167, 245 and 343:  Insert “West” after “Charlotte” 414 

Line 166:  Change “Nieder” to “Whirl” 415 

Line 200:  Change “Rodgers” to “Rogers” 416 

Mr. Ritschel questioned if Mr. Cox found any information regarding Mr. Paul Moore’s 417 

presentation.  Mr. Cox replied that he had information.   418 

Line 246:  Insert “of” after “up” 419 

Line 268:  Change “systematic” to “systemic” 420 

Line 279:  Change “sand” to “season” 421 

Mr. Ritschel recalled that Mr. Nieder got proposals from the master board to renovate the 422 

infield on the ball field.  423 

 424 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 14 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Brady, with 425 

all in favor, the January 25, 2011 Regular Meeting Minutes, as 426 

amended, were approved.  427 

 428 

 429 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 430 

 431 

***This item, originally the Tenth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 432 

 Mr. Blakeley reported traffic issues at the exit, by the gatehouse, in which cars are 433 

driving on the grass to turn right.  He stated the master board discussed having Lee County DOT 434 

put a curb in or having rocks or trees installed.  Mr. Nieder stated the rocks would not be feasible 435 

and trees will not work because there is not enough space between the curb and the sidewalk to 436 

establish a root system.  If shrubs are used, then there are visibility issues.  He stated he will 437 

obtain quotes for a possible curb.   438 

 Mr. Adams stated he received a list, from Mr. Nieder, of golf course equipment that 439 

exceeded its maximum life.  He requested authorization for the Chair to execute a resolution 440 

declaring surplus equipment, in which bids will be requested and, if no bids are received, it will 441 

be disposed of in accordance with the law.  The equipment includes two (2) Toro Reel Master 442 

mowers, two (2) Club Cars, one (1) Vicon Hopper and one (1) Jacobson fairway mower.  Mr. 443 

Ritschel questioned what is necessary to replace the equipment.  Mr. Nieder stated the Toro Reel 444 

Master mowers were replaced when S&S Golf Management was present.  The Club Cars are old 445 

utility cars and the hopper is a fertilizer spreader that was sitting there and needs to be rebuilt.  446 

The hopper was replaced.  Mr. Nieder requested that the utility cars and fairway unit be replaced. 447 

 448 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Brady, with 449 

all in favor, Resolution 2011-4, Declaring Certain Tangible 450 

Personal Property Surplus Equipment and Authorizing the 451 

District Manager to Sell or Dispose of Said Equipment as 452 

expeditiously as possible, was approved.  453 

 454 

 455 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Reports 456 

 457 

***This item, originally the Eleventh Order of Business, was presented out of 458 

order.*** 459 

 Supervisors Areas of Responsibility 460 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 15 

This item was addressed earlier in the meeting. 461 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 462 

 463 

***This item, originally the Twelfth Order of Business, was presented out of order.*** 464 

a. Golf Superintendent 465 

***This item, originally item 12c., was discussed out of order.*** 466 

Mr. Nieder reported that an organizational chart was completed years ago and he will try 467 

to find it.  He stated he found some issues with the employees hire dates and salary sheet in 468 

which employees that were not employed were shown as an employee.  Mr. Nieder noted that 469 

there were budgeted leases that ended.  One lease, for the amount of $12,066 per month, ended 470 

and lease number 10072 ended.  Mr. Nieder stated he received a quote from John Deere for the 471 

green’s mower.  He noted the hydraulic valve banks are beginning to need to be rebuilt for the 472 

existing mowers and a hydraulic spill on the green will kill the grass instantly, due to the heat of 473 

the hydraulic oil.  He stated the cost for two (2) new greens mowers from John Deere would be 474 

about $1,161 per month.  Mr. Ritschel asked if the new mowers include the equipment necessary 475 

for maintaining the new greens.  Mr. Nieder responded affirmatively.  Mr. Boesch questioned if 476 

those two (2) green mowers are included on the list for bidding.  Mr. Nieder replied that the 477 

mowers are not on the surplus equipment list.  Mr. Boesch recommended including the old 478 

mowers on the list.  Mr. Nieder reported that the company is familiar with the course’s financial 479 

status; however, they cannot proceed with the financing process until an agreement is signed.  480 

Mr. Nieder confirmed the price for two (2) new mowers is $1,161 per month and includes a 481 

warranty for three (3) years that covers all parts.  The only maintenance that would have to be 482 

completed is an oil and filter change.  Mr. Nieder noted the other equipment will need to be 483 

replaced soon.   484 

 485 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Rodrigues, 486 

with all in favor, authorization to proceed with the 487 

purchase/finance of two (2) new greens mowers, was approved. 488 

 489 

 490 

 Mr. Nieder reported that since the last meeting, he used one (1) complete load of green 491 

sand and another load was ordered.  He stated it looks better aesthetically and that the sand is 492 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 16 

within budget.  He asked the Board if they wanted to continue with the purchase of green sand.  493 

The Board replied affirmatively.   494 

 Mr. Nieder stated the budgeted amount for employee’s salaries included increases in 495 

salary.  He requested raises for specific employees.  Mr. Ritschel requested reviews be 496 

completed for those employees that Mr. Nieder wants to issue a raise.  Discussion followed on 497 

the process of raises.  Mr. Nieder explained that he usually hires in, below the starting rate, and 498 

completes reviews after the first 90 days, and on an annual basis.  Mr. Harland noted that he 499 

supported raises for employees that were with the golf course since 2009 and performing at an 500 

acceptable level; however, he was not concerned with employees that were employed for less 501 

than a year.  Discussion followed on the salary increases for employees.  Mr. Nieder stated he 502 

will complete the reviews and present for further discussion on salary raises.   503 

 Mr. Nieder summarized the repairs of various equipment and the associated costs.  He 504 

noted the transmission gear went out in the main rough unit, costing about $1,500.  The main 505 

sprayer actuator went out, costing $1,700.  The greens mower valve banks were replaced at $250 506 

per valve.  He noted issues with the golf carts and that the computer went out in the electric golf 507 

cart.  Mr. Ritschel noted the golf course operation is $200,000 under budget and thanked Mr. 508 

Nieder for his efforts. 509 

 Mr. Nieder reported that there is an issue in the wet well with sludge growing and a 510 

system needs to be installed to keep it clean.  He stated the sludge was working through the line 511 

and meters were being cleaned but the system should solve that problem. 512 

 Mr. Nieder stated he expressed his concerns to TruGreen regarding their property 513 

management.  He stated that TruGreen made a change in their on-site supervisory personnel.   514 

 Mr. Nieder recalled he met with a resident on Helmsdale that stated the common ground 515 

people used to clean out an area for him on the fence line for the preserve, towards the lake.  Mr. 516 

Nieder detailed the existing condition of the property line and that the property owner does not 517 

have a fire buffer on the side of the house.   518 

 Mr. Ritschel asked what funds were in the escrow account.  Mr. Adams replied it is left 519 

over funds from the construction proceeds that the Board thought was going to be removed.  The 520 

escrow was turned back, as the leasing company has not provided the documentation, in the 521 

proper form, to roll it off the financials; however, the escrow account has been closed.  He noted 522 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 17 

the funds will reduce principal and monthly payments, going forward, as the amortization 523 

schedule is completed.   524 

 Mr. Ritschel noted that Mr. Nieder was helping in the pro shop.  Discussion followed on 525 

the possible use of a temporary agency to assist in the administrative functions.  Mr. Nieder 526 

noted that the person is not always the same, on a day-to-day basis.   527 

 Mr. Ritschel reported that Mr. Ray Thorpe, who runs Paradise Golf Academy, has an 528 

agreement with the District allowing him to provide golf lessons.  When he takes the players to 529 

play golf, he pays fees.  Mr. Boesch questioned if Mr. Thorpe provided a certificate of insurance.  530 

Mr. Nieder stated he has not seen him in awhile.  Mr. Ritschel stated he will look into the 531 

certificate of insurance and reported that the agreement is a written agreement.  Mr. Adams noted 532 

he previously provided a generic agreement document with the appropriate provisions.   533 

b. Attorney 534 

***This item, originally item 12a., was discussed out of order.*** 535 

Mr. Cox reported that when the District was initially established and the bonds were 536 

issued for the purchase of the golf course, the property was not platted.  Initially, a deed was 537 

granted to the District that had metes and bounds legal descriptions for all the golf course tracks.  538 

Subsequently, they platted the project.  He stated he misspoke when he said the clubhouse track 539 

was not in the plat; it is in the plat but a separate tract.  The tract is a rectangle, roughly 500 feet.  540 

The golf cart barn is built in the southeast corner.  When the District closed on the bonds, the 541 

Engineer’s Report listed everything that the District was buying.  The report laid out everything 542 

that the District paid for.  It was $3,300,000 to construct the golf course on $1,560,000 worth of 543 

land and, in addition to the construction costs to the golf course, there were charges for rock 544 

burial, in the amount of $1.6 million.  The miscellaneous costs came to a total of $8,122,500 545 

including the total purchase price for the land for the golf course, 114.05 acres, and the 546 

clubhouse, 5 acres.  At the closing on the bonds, when the cost of issuance, deposit for 547 

capitalized interest and deposit to the debt service fund were netted out, out of the original 548 

$9,630,000, there was only $8,003,000 to actually do the acquisition.  Mr. Ritschel questioned if 549 

it cost $1.5 million to close the bonds.  Mr. Cox explained that the debt service reserve fund was 550 

$911,250; the deposit of capitalized interest was $475,000.  So roughly $1.5 million was to fund 551 

your debt service reserve accounts.  The cost of issuance, legal fees, underwriters discount and 552 

management fees were roughly $240,000.  He stated the total funds were short by about 553 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 18 

$120,000 for the engineer’s fees, so the clubhouse tract land was removed from the deal.  The 554 

legal description was modified for Tract G-2 to include the corner where the clubhouse is 555 

located.  The first cutout of that parcel occurred when the District bought the golf course, not 556 

when TAQ bought the building.  There was a deed to the District for the other corner, which is 557 

the putting green.  Mr. Cox noted concern for how everything relates from the legal descriptions 558 

because he cannot tell by the metes and bounds.  He stated a surveyor would have to shoot the 559 

existing lines, overlay the lines and make sure there are not any encroachments or a hiatus, where 560 

there is a gap between two (2) different legal descriptions.  He stated he would like to see actual 561 

numbers and data.  Mr. Ritschel asked, at the end of the day, what a completed survey would do 562 

for the District.  Mr. Cox replied that it would let the District know exactly how the properties 563 

relate to each other and provide a survey of the specific areas.   564 

 Mr. Ritschel recalled that, because there was not a bona fide survey, there could be areas 565 

that, if there was construction, it would be questionable who is responsible.  Mr. Cox noted he 566 

still has to look at the site development plan (SDP) files for where the SDP was actually 567 

approved for the construction of the golf cart barn and restaurant.  Based on the diagram, 568 

provided by Mr. Harwood, the restaurant is okay, as far as the setbacks are concerned.  The golf 569 

cart barn is built on the lot line of the clubhouse tract and is very, very tight where the metes and 570 

bounds are complete.  Mr. Cox explained that sometimes with PUDs, there is a permeated 571 

deviation from the land development code requirements for setbacks.  He stated the deviations 572 

will be listed on the SDP application; however, he has not reviewed the appropriate documents.  573 

Mr. Ritschel questioned if the survey that the District currently has was completed on behalf of 574 

TAQ.  Mr. Cox replied affirmatively.  Mr. Ritschel recalled that a copy of the document was 575 

provided to the District.  Mr. Cox recalled that the current document the District has was 576 

completed when the various easements between TAQ and the District were complete.  In 577 

response to a question, Mr. Cox explained that the land that the clubhouse is located on was 578 

originally included in the engineer’s estimated cost; however, the engineer’s estimated cost 579 

exceeded available funds from the sale of the bonds and the land was removed to decrease the 580 

price.  Mr. Ritschel questioned if the parking lot was part of the five (5) acres.  Mr. Cox 581 

responded affirmatively.  Mr. Boesch questioned which entity paid for the building.  Mr. Cox 582 

speculated that US Homes built it before the land sold.  He stated the maintenance building was 583 

$150,000; the maintenance equipment totaled $360,000, halfway shelters were $100,000 and 584 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 19 

landscaping was $250,000.  Mr. Ritschel requested an email summarizing the findings at Lee 585 

County.   586 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Ritschel, 587 

with all in favor, authorization to proceed with surveying the 588 

golf course boundary, adjacent to the clubhouse site and 589 

overlay on plat, in order to determine the appropriate 590 

encroachments, with Johnson Engineering, in an amount not 591 

to exceed $3,500, was approved. 592 

 593 

 594 

c. Engineer 595 

***This item, originally item 12b., was discussed out of order.*** 596 

There being no report, the next item followed. 597 

d. Golf Pro 598 

There being no report, the next item followed. 599 

e. Manager 600 

i. Unaudited Financial Statements as of January 31, 2011 601 

Mr. Adams presented the Unaudited Financial Statements as of January 31, 2011. 602 

ii. High Irrigation Users’ Report, Period 1/2011 603 

Mr. Adams presented the High Irrigation Users’ Report for January 2011.  604 

iii. Irrigation Disconnect List, 2/10/2011 605 

Mr. Adams presented the Irrigation Disconnect List, dated February 10, 2011 and noted 606 

there are 55 accounts.  Discussion followed on the number of accounts on the irrigation 607 

disconnect list.   608 

iv. NEXT MEETING DATE:  March 22, 2011 at 6:00 P.M. 609 

Mr. Adams noted the next regular meeting is scheduled for March 22, 2011.   610 

 611 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comment/Supervisors’ 612 

Requests 613 
 614 

***This item, originally the Thirteenth Order of Business, was presented out of 615 

order.*** 616 

 Mr. Ritschel asked if the Board desired to continue the roving guard services and 617 

questioned if the rovers are running the stations.  Mr. Nieder replied affirmatively.   618 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 20 

 Mr. Boesch recalled that he, and Mr. Ritschel, met with Mr. Chris Major, General 619 

Manager at Eagle Lakes.  He manages an 18-hole golf course in the southern part of Naples, 620 

completes about 30,000 rounds a year, takes in about $1.4 million in income and runs on a 621 

budget of $620,000.   622 

 Mr. Ritschel requested having until Friday for the Board to submit job description details.   623 

 Discussion followed on having an event after the busy season with the volunteers and 624 

employees.   625 

 Mr. Adams stated he has not received a response from Ms. Charlotte West.   626 

 Mr. Nieder reported the ficus hedge is recovering and noted concern about the larger 627 

trees with a larger breeding area.  He volunteered to do a newsletter article.   628 

  629 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Executive Session 630 

 631 

***This item, originally the Fourteenth Order of Business, was presented out of 632 

order.*** 633 

 An Executive Session was not held. 634 

 635 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 636 

 637 

***This item, originally the Fifteenth Order of Business, was presented out of 638 

order.*** 639 

 The meeting was continued to March 10, 2011 at 4:00 p.m. 640 

 641 

On MOTION by Mr. Boesch and seconded by Mr. Rodrigues, 642 

with all in favor, the meeting was continued to March 10, 2011, 643 

at 4:00 p.m., at the same location, to consider and select a 644 

Selection Review Committee for the Head Golf Pro position. 645 

 646 

647 



STONEYBROOK CDD  February 22, 2011 

 21 

 648 

 649 

 650 

 651 

 652 

 653 

____________________________   ____________________________ 654 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 655 










































